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1. NAME OF PROPERTY

Historic Name:

Other Name/Site Number:

|
2. LOCATION

Street & Number: Off Beltrami County Highway 39

City/Town: Taylor Township (Chippewa National Forest)

State: MN County: Beltrami

|
3. CLASSIFICATION

Ownership of Property
Private: _
Public-Local: ___
Public-State:
Public-Federal: X

Number of Resources within Property
Contributing
2

12
2
3

17

Code: 007

Rabideau Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) Camp

Not for publication:
Vicinity: Blackduck

Zip Code: 56630

Category of Property
Building(s):

District: X
Site:
Structure:
Object:

Noncontributing
_4  buildings
__ sites

_2 structures
_1 objects
7 Total

Number of Contributing Resources Previously Listed in the National Register: 17

Name of Related Multiple Property Listing:
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4. STATE/FEDERAL AGENCY CERTIFICATION

As the designated authority under the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966, as amended, I hereby certify
that this nomination _____ request for determination of eligibility meets the documentation standards for
registering properties in the National Register of Historic Places and meets the procedural and professional
requirements set forth in 36 CFR Part 60. In my opinion, the property _ meets _____ does not meet the
National Register Criteria.

Signature of Certifying Official Date

State or Federal Agency and Bureau

In my opinion, the property meets does not meet the National Register criteria.

Signature of Commenting or Other Official Date

State or Federal Agency and Bureau

|
5. NATIONAL PARK SERVICE CERTIFICATION

I hereby certify that this property is:

___ Entered in the National Register

___ Determined eligible for the National Register
____ Determined not eligible for the National Register
___ Removed from the National Register

____ Other (explain):

Signature of Keeper Date of Action
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6. FUNCTION OR USE

Historic: DOMESTIC Sub: camp

Current: RECREATION AND CULTURE Sub: museum
outdoor recreation

|
7. DESCRIPTION

ARCHITECTURAL CLASSIFICATION: OTHER: New Deal Work Camp

MATERIALS:
Foundation: wood, concrete
Walls: wood
Roof: asphalt

Other:
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Describe Present and Historic Physical Appearance.

The Rabideau Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) Camp is located in the Chippewa National Forest, one-half
mile west of Beltrami County Highway 39, six miles south of the city of Blackduck, in north central Minnesota.
The camp is situated on a rural tract of land comprising 111.65 acres, which represents the federal
government’s original land acquisition for the camp dating from 1934. An unpaved gravel road enters the camp
from the south, although the camp itself is screened by vegetation until the core camp area is reached. The
camp is sited on a low rise of land between Carls Lake and Benjamin Lake in picturesque stands of paper birch,
many of which predate the construction of the camp.

The vegetation surrounding the camp consists of second growth forest. In addition to the dominant birch, other
species within the over story include basswood, ash, burr oak, and elm. The central portion of the camp, as well
as the current picnic area, is mowed, while the remaining areas, such as the Service Yard and the Ball Field,
consist of grass and low herbaceous plants. Moderately dense forest vegetation surrounds the core camp area.
Three cedar hedgerows, believed to have been planted by the CCC, are also located at the camp; one just south
of the Holspital, one along the eastern edge of the entrance road, and the third just south of the Education
Building.

The original site plan located the principal common-use buildings at the center of the camp on a north-south
axis. Barracks and other support buildings are located to the east and west. The buildings are generally large,
rectangular frame buildings with multi-pane hopper windows and covered with low-pitch gable roofs, typical of
CCC camp architecture. The buildings form a uniform, cohesive collection created by their simple and
repetitious design, material, and paint scheme. The camp's original unpaved road system forms a central loop
providing convenient access to the majority of the buildings. Lake views exist from the developed areas of the
camp.

The property has survived with relatively little change since its initial occupation by the CCC Camp F-50 from
1935-1941. Beginning in 1946, the camp was leased to the University of [llinois for summer classes from the
Department of Civil Engineering and later the Department of Forestry. The lease arrangement remained in
effect until 1973. During that time, the camp was affected by some demolition, damage by fire, and minor
alteration of a few interiors. The Rabideau Camp has remained in the ownership of the U.S. Forest Service
since its creation, and is now open to the public for interpretation. During the summer months, former CCC
enrollees are available for guided tours. The CCC Company 708 held it first annual reunion at the camp in
1970, a tradition that continues to this day.

The historic district includes twelve contributing buildings, three contributing structures, one contributing
object, and two contributing sites. All contributing resources were constructed between 1935-41. Four non-
contributing buildings and two non-contributing structures are also included.

In the following descriptions, the number in parentheses represents the number assigned to the building by the
U.S. Forest Service. This system applies to both existing buildings and the camp’s original buildings that are
no longer extant. The Forest Service has assigned numbers 1-29. Additional numbers have been assigned to
resources not included in the Forest Service’s numbering system. A map of the camp is keyed to this system.
At least two other numbering systems had been used at the camp. However, for the purposes of clarity, only the
contemporary number is referenced.

'Charles Wingard, "Vegetative Management Plan for Rabideau Historic Site/Picnic Area," 1984.
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Forest Service Officer’s Quarters’ (#2)

The Forest Service Officer's Quarters is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20’
by 62'. The building is covered with shiplap siding painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch,
trussed, gable roof covered with green rolled asphalt. A log post foundation supports the building and consists
of three sets of eight, evenly-spaced posts which are positioned along the north and south exterior side walls
and the building's central axis. The posts are exposed along both the south and west sides due to the building's
position within a shallow hillside. The principal entrance is located on the west end wall and features a
projecting entry covered by a gable roof. Three steps rise to a small porch with wooden railings that extends
from the entry. A second entrance is centered on the east end wall. Window openings consist of nine-light
hopper windows that are typically hinged at the base. Single windows flank each entrance door and eight
windows are spaced along the north wall. Three, square-shaped, nine-light windows are grouped together as a
single unit on the western portion of the south wall. The remainder of this side features five evenly spaced
single windows. One single six-light window is placed in each gable end. The trim around all doors and
window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted white. Three metal
chimneys project from the north slope of the roof.

The interior includes a 20' by 15' day room to the west with hardwood floors, vertical knotty-pine paneling, and
a varnished plywood ceiling with a tent-like appearance that is achieved by angling a plywood section toward
each of the north and south sidewalls. The room includes a free-standing wood-burning stove. A central
hallway extends from the day room to the east entrance. Six bedrooms open off the hallway as well as toilet
facilities. Each bedroom features one wall of built-in storage including closets, drawers, and cupboards. Walls
and ceilings are finished similarly to the day room although the ceilings are flat and the flooring appears to be

plywood.

The Forest Service Officer's Quarters provided living space for the Camp Superintendent, Engineer, and
Foremen, who were responsible for supervising the work projects undertaken by the CCC, and any visiting
Forest Service inspection teams.

The current arrangement of the interior spaces apparently occurred in circa 1939. The major changes appear to
have involved extending the day room the full width of the building and moving the principal entrance from the
center of the south wall to the west end. The relocation of the entrance is verified by the oldest known site plan
of the camp that clearly indicates the entrance along the south wall as well as the presence of wood infill that
marks the original entrance. The toilet facilities may have been added at this time as well. The building was
also used for staff as well as guest quarters when the University of Illinois occupied the site.?

Barracks (#3)

The Barracks is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 75'. The building is
covered with shiplap siding painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered
with green rolled asphalt. The north facade features an off-center entrance positioned along the eastern portion

*Descriptions for the resources at the camp are derived in part from the Historic American Buildings Survey of the Rabideau CCC
Camp (HABS No. MN-147), Rolf Anderson, Historian.

3«Rabideau Camp F-50”; site plan of the camp ca. 1936, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil
Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1; U.S. Forest Service, “Program of Management for Rabideau Historic Site,” July 1978,
U.S. Forest Service, undated history of the Rabideau Camp, Rabideau Camp file, Forest Supervisor’s Office, Cass Lake, Minnesota.
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of the wall. Two nine-light hopper windows are placed to the left of the entrance and five evenly-spaced
hopper windows are placed to the right. This arrangement is repeated in the reverse on the south side with the
entrance door located along the western portion of the wall. The east end wall includes one nine-light hopper
window positioned to the south and one six-light window centered in the gable end. The west end wall repeats
this arrangement but with the window opening located to the north. The trim around all doors and window
openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted white. Two metal chimneys
project from the roof, one from each of the north and south slopes.

The interior of the Barracks consists of one large room with a horizontal 1" by 6" wood wainscot to the sill
level and fiberboard above. The building's truss system is completely exposed although three posts have been
added along the center of the room for additional support. There are several large tables in the room.

The Barracks originally housed CCC enrollees and was later used as a classroom by the University of Illinois.
While in use by the University of Illinois, an entrance on each end wall was infilled and relocated to the north
and south facades. One window opening was also infilled on each end wall. Several structural problems have
developed as seen in the severely buckled floors of the interior as well as the sagging roofline. Either the
foundation is failing or portions of the building may be resting directly on the ground. The building is in fair
condition.

Education Building (#4)

The Education Building is a large U-shaped structure with the principal center portion of the building
positioned on the crest of a hill and the two projecting wings extending to the south above the surrounding
terrain. The dimensions of the rectangular main building are 20' by 75', while the east wing is 20' long and 20'
wide, and the larger west wing is 40' long by 20’ wide. The building is covered with shiplap siding painted a
dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered with green rolled asphalt. A log post
foundation supports the building. With its hillside location and rather unusual size for a building associated with
a CCC camp, the Education Building is the most imposing structure at the Rabideau Camp.

The east end wall of the principal section of the building features an entrance door to the south which is covered
with a gabled canopy and two nine-light hopper windows positioned to the right. The walk leading to the entry
consists of a large piece of slate. Eight nine-light windows are spaced along the north wall while an entrance
door flanked by single windows is located on the west end wall. A stairway that descended to the ground has
been removed. The south side includes four window openings that open into the base of the U. The West Wing
features four windows on the west wall, two windows on the south end wall, a central entrance flanked by two
windows to each side on the east facade. A stairway that descended to the ground has been removed. The East
Wing includes four windows on the west wall, two on the south, and an entrance door on the east facade with
two windows positioned to the south. One six-light hopper window is placed in each of the building's four
gable ends. The trim around all doors and window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain
wood planks painted white.

The principal entrance, located in the east end wall, leads to a short hallway with the library positioned to the
left, in the east wing, and a room which appears to have been an office to the right. Directly ahead is the large
classroom, which includes a doorway to the west wing along the south wall. Interior surfaces include pine
paneling in the office, a horizontal 1" by 6" wood wainscot to the sill level in the West Wing with fiberboard
above, and plywood paneling in the large classroom. Like the Forest Service Officer's Quarters, both the main
section of the building and the library feature plywood ceilings with a tent-like appearance that is achieved by
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angling a plywood panel toward each sidewall.

When the Rabideau Camp was first constructed, the Education Building only consisted of its rectangular
principal section, with the same dimensions as the standard barracks at the camp. Since it was described as a
barracks on the oldest known site plan, it is possible the building may have initially served that purpose, but it is
known to have served as the camp's Education Building beginning in 1936. The CCC later added the two wings
to the building, probably sometime in 1936, which is apparently indicative of the increasingly important role
that education played at the camp. The expanded building included classroom space, a library, and a workshop.
The camp's Educational Advisor conducted educational and training classes.

When the University of Illinois first utilized the camp, the Education Building continued to provide classroom
space. The large tables and benches found in the classroom were probably built by the University in circa 1947.
In time, the use shifted to recreation. Films were shown in the classroom and by 1950 a canteen was installed
in the west wing, which had been the workshop. It is also evident that the principal entrance located in the east
end wall was once centrally located but at one time its location was exchanged with the adjacent window
opening. Wood infill clearly marks the location of the original doorway. This change probably occurred in
1936 based on a description of the building by Clair T. Rollings, the camp's Educational Advisor. Rollings also
noted that the slate for the walkway came from old pool tables.*

By 1990, the Education Building was experiencing a number of structural problems, including the apparent
failure of the foundation along the west fagade of the west wing. The Forest Service installed cribbing beneath
the wing in order to prevent collapse. However, the building has been completely restored over a several year
period through a joint effort of the U.S. Forest Service, the Preservation Alliance of Minnesota, and the City of
Blackduck. The U.S. Forest Service is in the process of installing a museum in the building that interprets the
history of the CCC and the Rabideau Camp.

Barracks (#5)

The Barracks is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 75' that is nearly
identical to the Barracks to the south identified as Building #3. The building is covered with shiplap siding
painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered with green rolled asphalt. The
north facade features an off-center entrance positioned along the eastern portion of the wall. Two nine-light
hopper windows are placed to the left of the entrance and five evenly-spaced hopper windows are placed to the
right. A small four-light window is located immediately to the left of the entrance. This arrangement is
repeated in the reverse on the south wall with the entrance door located along the western portion of the facade,
although the four-light window has been omitted. The east end wall includes one nine-light hopper window
positioned to the south and one six-light window centered in the gable end. The west end wall repeats this
arrangement but with the window opening located to the north. The trim around all doors and window
openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted white. Two metal chimneys
project from the roof, one from each of the north and south slopes. The building is probably supported by a log
post foundation but it almost appears to be resting directly on the ground.

The interior of the Barracks consists of one large room with a horizontal 1" by 6" wood wainscot to the sill

*Ibid.; “Rabideau Camp F-50;” University of Illinois, “Camp Rabideau” site plan, August 1947, and “Classroom Building” drawing, 6
April 1947, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1.
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level and fiberboard above. The building's truss system is completely exposed. A wood partition divides the
building into two spaces, one room at the east end and a second room approximately twice as large to the west.

The Barracks originally housed CCC enrollees and was later used as a classroom by the University of Illinois.
While in use by the University of Illinois, an entrance on each end wall was infilled and relocated to the north
and south sides. One window opening was also infilled on each end wall. The University also added the
interior partition.” The building is in fair condition.

Barracks (#6)

The Barracks is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 75'. The building
overlooks Carls Lake, which is approximately 30’ to the north. The building is covered with shiplap siding
painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered with green rolled asphalt. A
log post foundation supports the building. Two entrance doors are positioned on the south facade with four
evenly spaced nine-light hopper windows positioned between them and two windows located to each side.
Each end wall includes two nine-light windows and one six-light window in the gable end. Ten windows are
located on the north wall as well as a small 4' by 4' projection from the center of the wall that contains a water
heater. Three deteriorated steps ascend to a plank door to gain access to the space. The trim around all doors
and window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted white. Four metal
chimneys project from the south slope of the roof, just off the ridge. The entrance door to the west is
deteriorated.

Although originally consisting of a single open space, the interior was remodeled in 1947 to create four
apartments. The building is divided in half, with two apartments in each section, and each section has its own
entrance door. Each doorway leads to a small foyer with doors to the left and right for each apartment. Each
unit consists of a day room to the south and two bedrooms to the north that open directly into the day room. An
interior hallway shared by both units leads to a common bath. Also in 1947, the centrally located entrance
doors in each end wall were infilled, two doors were installed on the south facade, and an addition was made on
the north wall to provide space for a water heater. The materials used in the addition appear identical to those
of the original structure, apparently because they were salvaged from another building at the camp. The units
were used by staff, and were designed in particular for family members who came to live at the camp during the
school's summer program.® The building is in fair condition.

Recreation Hall (#7)

The Recreation Hall is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 75' whose
present appearance is nearly identical to the Barracks identified as Building #6. The building is covered with
shiplap siding painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered with green rolled
asphalt. A log post foundation supports the building. Two entrance doors are positioned on the south facade
with four evenly spaced nine-light hopper windows positioned between them and two windows located to each
side. Each end wall includes two nine-light windows and one six-light window in the gable end. The window

>“Rabideau Camp F-507; “Memorandum to Students,” 15 June 1949, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-
Champaign, Civil Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1.

6«Rabideau Camp F-50”; undated and untitled floor plans for remodeling, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-
Champaign, Civil Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1; W. C. Huntington, head of the Department of Civil Engineering,
College of Engineering, University of Illinois, to Marvin Smith, Forest Supervisor, Chippewa National Forest, 5 September 1946,
Rabideau Camp file, Iron Range Research Center, Chisholm, Minnesota.
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to the south on the west wall has been altered so that it is lower than typical window height. Nine windows are
located on the north wall as well as a small 4' by 4' projection near the center that contains a water heater. The

trim around all doors and window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted
white. Four metal chimneys project from the south slope of the roof, just off the ridge.

CCC enrollees used the Recreation Hall after field work was done and the evening meal had been served.
Furnishings included pool and ping-pong tables, sports equipment, a movie projector, candy and pop machines,
and a barber's chair. A canteen was also included which sold items such as razor blades, bar soap, and
toothpaste.

The interior was remodeled by the University of Illinois in 1946 to create four apartments. The building was
divided in half, with two apartments in each section, and each section with its own entrance door. Each
doorway leads to a small foyer with doors to the left and right for each apartment. Each unit consists of a day
room to the south and two bedrooms to the north that open directly into the day room. An interior hallway
shared by both units leads to a common bath. Two entrance doors on the south facade and one on the west end
wall were infilled, two new doors were installed on the south wall, and a small addition was made on the north
side to provide space for a water heater. The materials used in the addition appear identical to those of the
original structure, apparently because they were salvaged from another building at the camp. The units were
used by University staff, and were designed in particular for family members who came to live at the camp
during the school's summer program. The Recreation Building is in poor condition.’

Barracks (Mess Hall) (#8)

The Barracks (Mess Hall) is a one-story, T-shaped, frame building located on a hillside at the northern edge of
the camp. It includes a 20' by 86' dining hall and an extension to the south for the kitchen. The kitchen wing
consists of a 20' by 24' section positioned at the intersection of the T followed by an 8' by 13' section. The
building is covered with shiplap siding painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, cross-gable
roof covered with green rolled asphalt. A gable-roofed ridge ventilator projects from the roof of the kitchen.
The dining hall includes a central entrance door on the north facade and doors on each end wall, although
stairways are no longer in place to descend to the ground. Paired six-light windows are located in each gable
end while nineteen nine-light hopper windows are spaced along the sides, although the windows are somewhat
smaller than those found in the other buildings at the camp. The kitchen wing includes an entrance door to the
south, paired nine-light windows on the west walls, and five windows on the south and east sides. Small
louvered vents are positioned on both surfaces of the southeast corner of the kitchen wing. A projection along
the east sidewall, at the intersection of the T, includes another entrance door. The trim around all doors and
window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted white. In addition,
vertical wood strips are spaced at intervals on all sides, a detail not found on any other building at the camp.
Five metal chimneys project from the roof, four from the north slope and one from the south slope. The
building is supported by a log post foundation.

The interior of the dining hall features plywood to the sill level with fiberboard above, an exposed truss system,

"Ibid.; U.S. Forest Service, undated history of the Rabideau Camp, Rabideau Camp file, Forest Supervisor’s Office, Cass Lake,
Minnesota.
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and a number of tables. The west end of the dining hall is partitioned off to create a separate room. A long
serving counter is positioned at the intersection of the dining hall and the kitchen. The kitchen includes a walk-
in freezer, a gas stove, sinks, various counters, a chopping block, and storage space.

According to the oldest known site plan of the camp, the original Mess Hall built in 1935 was located
immediately to the south of the present building and was nearly a reverse image of the current structure with the
leg of the T extending to the north. However, when the University of Illinois was first negotiating with the
Forest Service for the use of the camp in 1945, correspondence clearly indicates that both the original Mess
Hall and Wash House had been "recently” destroyed in a fire. The University indicated it would need to rebuild
these structures, and thus it would appear certain that both were destroyed after the CCC vacated the camp,
otherwise they would have necessarily been rebuilt or installed in an existing structure. To complicate this
history, the oldest known site plan of the camp includes the original Mess Hall, but nothing is shown on the site
of the present building. However, when the University of Illinois was provided with an updated copy of this
site plan by the Forest Service in 1945, the building was penciled in and it is likely it had been constructed by
1938. The University later revised the site plan in 1946 and described the building as a "barracks" although only
the rectangular northern portion of the building existed at that time. The CCC enrollees have also referred to
the building as such. Another site plan referred to the building as a "portable barracks." Other references
describe the building as a bakery for the nearby Mess Hall. The University also called the building the
"northern barracks" when they decided to convert the building to a mess hall. As part of the conversion
process, the Oil House from the service yard, a 20' by 24' structure, was moved and attached to the barracks and
formed the first portion of the leg of the T. During the planning process, the University requested information
about the layouts of other mess halls at CCC camps in the Chippewa National Forest in order to plan the space.
In fact, kitchen equipment from the mess hall at the CCC camp at Remer was transferred to the Rabideau
Camp, and the refrigeration unit from the Remer camp may have been installed as well. The building was
restored by the Forest Service in 1986 and is in excellent condition.®

Barracks (#9)

The Barracks is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 75'. The building is
covered with shiplap siding painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered
with green rolled asphalt. The building is supported by a log post foundation. Eight nine-light hopper windows
are spaced along both the north and south walls. The east and west facades feature a central entrance door
flanked by nine-light windows and one six-light window in the gable. The trim around all doors and window
openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted white. A 4'square frame addition
at the southeast corner of the building was constructed to contain a hot water heater. The addition continues the
original roofline. Three metal chimneys project from the roof, one from each of the north and south slopes, and
one from the addition.

The interior of the Barracks consists of one large room with a horizontal 1" by 6" wood wainscot to the sill
level and fiberboard above. The building's truss system is completely exposed. Two shelves have been
installed along the sidewalls. Wash room facilities are located at the east end of the building with four sinks

8«Rabideau Camp F-50 *; site plan of the camp ca. 1936, site plan of the camp dated 10 October 1945, “Memorandum Concerning the
Summer Surveying Camp,” dated 8 October 1945, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil
Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1; Correspondence between the U.S. Forest Service and the University of Illinois dated
13 October 1945, 8 December 1945, 17 January 1946, a copy of the original “Special Use Permit,” dated 31 May 1946, granted to the
University of Illinois for the use of the Rabideau Camp attached to correspondence dated 3 January 1950, Rabideau Camp file, Iron
Range Research Center, Chisholm, Minnesota. U.S. Forest Service, “Program of Management for Rabideau Historic Site,” July 1978.
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and two toilets in a small room to the north and showers in the room to the south, both of which are separated
by a hallway that leads to the east entrance.

The Barracks originally housed CCC enrollees and was later utilized for the same purpose by the University of
[linois which used the building as a student dormitory. The University installed the wash room facilities in
1946 after apparently deciding not to construct a central wash house. The addition for the water heater may
have occurred at that time but it is likely that hot water was provided to all the student dormitories from a large
water heater in Building #14 until 1952. Regardless of the date of the addition, the materials are identical to
those of the original camp buildings because salvaged materials from dismantled structures were generally used
for any rergnodeling which occurred. The building remains in particularly original, although deteriorated,
condition.

Barracks (#10)

The Barracks is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 75' located at the
western perimeter of the camp just west of Benjamin Lake. The building is covered with shiplap siding painted
a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered with green rolled asphalt. Eight nine-
light hopper windows are spaced along both the north and south walls. The east and west facades feature a
central entrance door flanked by nine-light windows and one six-light window in the gable. The trim around all
doors and window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted white. A 4'
square frame addition at the southwest corner of the building was constructed to contain a hot water heater. The
addition continues the original roofline. Three metal chimneys project from the roof, one from each of the
north and south slopes, and one from the addition. The building is probably supported by a log post foundation
but it almost appears to be resting directly on the ground.

The interior of the Barracks consists of one large room with a horizontal 1" by 6" wood wainscot to the sill
level and fiberboard above. The building's truss system is completely exposed. Two shelves have been
installed along the sidewalls. Wash room facilities are located at the west end of the building with four sinks
and two toilets in a small room to the north and showers in the room to the south, both of which are separated
by a hallway that leads to the west entrance.

The Barracks originally housed CCC enrollees and was later utilized for the same purpose by the University of
INlinois which used the building as a student dormitory. The University installed the wash room facilities in
1946 after apparently deciding not to construct a central wash house. The addition for the water heater may
have occurred at that time but it is likely that hot water was provided to all the student dormitories from a large
water heater in Building #14 until 1952. Regardless of the date of the addition, the materials are identical to
those of the original camp buildings because salvaged materials from dismantled structures were generally used
for any remodeling which occurred. The building remains in particularly original condition although it is in
very deteriorated state and experiencing certain structural problems as evidenced by its uneven roofline.
Barracks #10 is nearly identical to Barracks #9 except the washroom facilities are located at the opposite end of
the building.'°

%Rabideau Camp F-50”; “Memorandum Concerning the Summer Surveying Camp,” 1 December 1945; “Memorandum to Students,”
15 June 1949, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1;
Milton O. Schmidt, Professor of Civil Engineering, Emertius, University of Illinois, to the U.S. Forest Service, Chippewa National
E‘)orest, 5 August 1985, Rabideau Camp file, Forest Supervisor’s Office, Cass Lake, Minnesota.

Ibid.
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Barracks (#11)

The Barracks is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 75'. The building is
covered with shiplap siding painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered
with green rolled asphalt. The building is supported by a log post foundation. Eight nine-light hopper windows
are spaced along both the north and south walls. The east and west facades feature a central entrance door
flanked by nine-light windows and one six-light window in the gable. The trim around all doors and window
openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted green. Four metal chimneys
project from the roof, two from each of the north and south slopes.

The interior of the Barracks consists of one large room with a horizontal 1" by 6" wood wainscot to the sill
level and fiberboard above. The building's truss system is completely exposed. A wood-burning barrel stove is
located in the center. Two shelves have been installed along the sidewalls. Wash room facilities are located at
the east end of the building with four sinks and two toilets in a small room to the north and showers in the room
to the south, both of which are separated by a hallway that leads to the east entrance.

The Barracks originally housed CCC enrollees and was later utilized for the same purpose by the University of
Ilinois which used the building as a student dormitory. The University installed the wash room facilities in
1946 after apparently deciding not to construct a central wash house. This building is nearly identical to
Building #9, located immediately to the north. The Barracks was restored by the Forest Service in 1986 and is
in excellent condition.

Army Officer’s Quarters (#13)

The Army Officer's Quarters is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20’ by 42".
The building is covered with shiplap siding painted a dark green and is capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable
roof covered with green rolled asphalt. The building is supported by a log post foundation. The west facing
principal facade features an off center entry, with a small porch with wood railings, which is flanked by single
nine-light hopper windows. One six-light window is positioned in the gable end. The north wall includes four
nine-light windows and the east end wall features two nine-light windows and one six-light window in the
gable. A multi-paned French-style entrance door is centered on the south wall with two windows evenly spaced
to either side. The trim around all doors and window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain
wood planks painted green. Three metal chimneys project from the roof, all from the south slope.

Beginning at the west entrance, the interior includes an entry room, a bathroom, and a day room, all located
along the south wall. Four bedrooms are positioned along the north sidewall. The wall surfaces in the entrance
room and bedroom located at the west end of the building are finished with varnished plywood while all the
remaining rooms, with the exception of the bath, feature knotty-pine paneling. All ceilings are finished with
plywood although those in the day room and three bedrooms to the east are characterized by a tent-like
appearance that is achieved by angling a plywood section toward each of the north and south sidewalls. All
floors are hardwood although the day room is covered with brown linoleum.

The Army Officer's Quarters was used to house the Camp Commander, Second Officer, and Camp Physician.
The interior was remodeled in circa 1939. An historic photograph shows an arbor over the path leading to the

Ubid.
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south entrance. The University of Illinois used the building for staff quarters. The building was restored by the
Forest Service in 1986 and is in excellent condition. 2

Water Tower Base (#15A)

Four concrete piers which formed the structural base of the camp's water tower are located just to the south of
the Wash House. Forming a 16' square, each corner pier is 2.5' square and approximately 1.5' high. Each of the
outside edges is slightly tapered.

From each pier rose heavy timber posts, with three stages of cross-bracing, which supported a platform with
railings that held a redwood tank. By 1960 the University had removed the tank and superstructure when
pressurized water tanks were installed. The University had previously noted there had been some structural
problems with the timber posts and a ladder that allowed access to the platform. The Water Tower Base is
considered a contributing structure."

Hospital (#17)

The Hospital is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 20' by 54' located on a
hillside with a gentle slope to the south. The building is covered with shiplap siding painted a dark green and is
capped with a low-pitch, trussed, gable roof covered with green rolled asphalt. The building is supported by a
log post foundation. The principal entrance is located on the north end of the east facade and includes a small
porch and railings. One nine-light hopper window is positioned to the left of the doorway and one six-light
window is located in the gable end. The west facade includes a central entrance, although there are no longer
steps in place to access the entry, flanking nine-light windows and one six-light window in the gable end. Both
the north and south sidewalls feature seven windows spaced along the walls. The trim around all doors and
window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted green. Two metal
chimneys project from the roof, one from each of the north and south slopes.

A waiting room is entered from the east doorway with an examination room to the south. A central hallway
with a unique tunnel vault executed in plywood extends from the waiting room to a large ward at the west end
of the building. A bath, a staff bedroom, an isolation room, and one additional room open off the hallway. A
groin vault is positioned at the intersection of the hallway and the entries to the bath and staff bedroom. The
walls and ceilings throughout the hospital feature varnished plywood. The ward features a ceiling that gently
curves as it meets the north and south side walls, several recessed lights, and decorative vertical wood strips
below the windows. Two of the corner surfaces in the ward are rounded, although this detail was somewhat
obscured by subsequent changes. Other features include a built-in dresser with flanking closets in the staff
bedroom.

Both the CCC and the University of Illinois used this building as a hospital. The oldest known site plan for the
camp shows the principal entrance door located at the east end of the north facade and evidence of this doorway
is still apparent from the wood infill. The entrance was then shifted to the east end wall. Other changes include

12«Rabideau Camp F-507; U.S. Forest Service, undated history of the Rabideau Camp, Rabideau Camyp file, Forest Supervisor’s
Office, Cass Lake, Minnesota.

BUniversity of Illinois, photograph “R-1” 1945, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil Engineering
Subject File Record Series 11/5/1; Ray Hubbard internal memorandum to Forest Supervisor 14 April 1960, Rabideau Camp file,
Forest Supervisor’s Office, Cass Lake, Minnesota.
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shifting the wall between the waiting room and the examination room to the south so that the central hallway
could be accessed from the waiting room. The original L-shaped ward was also modified by the construction of
another room that gave the ward a squared appearance. This change also included the installation of a door
from the hallway to the ward and together they obscured the curved corner surfaces. A file from the University
of Illinois contains a floor plan of the hospital prior to the interior changes, which probably occurred in 1939.
The building was restored by the Forest Service in 1986 and is in excellent condition.'*

Service Yard

A large clearing on the west side of the camp identifies the location of the Service Yard. Low grasses and
vegetation characterize the clearing. The Service Yard contained nine buildings historically. These buildings
are no longer standing, however, structural features are visible throughout the site. These include concrete slabs
and poured concrete structures that may have provided support to structures such as loading docks. For
example, a concrete feature approximately 5° square and 3.5 high remains from the loading dock of the Tool
House (#19). Another concrete feature is a U-shaped structure with poured concrete walls about 3.5' high. The
sidewalls are about 6' long and the end wall is about 3.5' wide with a small concrete section projecting above
the surrounding walls. It may have been associated with the Oil House (#22). Other concrete features appear to
be associated with the two Storage Garages (#23 & #24) and the Equipment Shed (#26). It is likely that other
structural features exist below grade. The Service Yard is considered a contributing site.

The Service Yard originally included the following buildings that are no longer extant'’:

Storage Garage (#18) - This 22' by 44' building was used by the CCC and later by the University of Illinois for
storage. It was removed in 1966 and may have been sold to the local Fair Board along with Building #12.

Tool House (#19) - This 20' by 50' building featured loading platforms and a canopy along one side. It was
used to store all the camp's tools including saws, axes, shovels, as well as supplies such as rope, wire, and nails.
Each crew would check out tools in the morning and return them at the end of the day. Tools were repaired in
the building as well. The University of Illinois also used the building to store surveying instruments. After the
roof collapsed in 1986 the building was razed although some materials may have been retained for future use on
other buildings. The Tool House was the last building to remain in the service yard.

Oil House (#22) - This 20' by 24' building was moved and attached to Building #8 in 1946 to form the Mess
Hall for the University of Illinois.

Storage Garage (#23) - This 48' by 88' building was the largest in the service yard and was used to store many
of the camp's trucks. Tools were also stored in the building until the Tool House (Building #19) was
constructed. The building was demolished in 1950 after the University of Illinois no longer had any use for it.

14«Rabideau Camp F-50”; undated and untitled floor plan, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil
Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1.

3«Rabideau Camp F-507; site plan dated August 1947, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil
Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1; U.S. Forest Service, undated history of the Rabideau Camp, Rabideau Camp file,
Forest Supervisor’s Office, Cass Lake, Minnesota.



NPS Form 10-900 USDI/NPS NRHP Registration Form (Rev. 8-86) OMB No. 1024-0018

RABIDEAU CIVILIAN CONSERVATION CORPS (CCC) CAMP Page 15

United States Department of the Interior, National Park Service National Register of Historic Places Registration Form

Storage Garage (#24) - This 20' by 54' building was apparently also used for vehicular storage and for other
equipment, perhaps even lumber. It was demolished in 1946, but it is likely that salvaged materials from this
building were used by the University of Illinois for construction and remodeling projects at the camp.

Repair Shop (#25) - This 32' by 42' building was used for repairing trucks, tractors, and other equipment.
Because of constant use and the rough terrain, the equipment was in constant need of repairs and maintenance.
CCC enrollees could receive on-the-job training at the shop. The building appears to have been demolished by
1950.

Equipment Shed (#26) - This 33' by 66' building was used for the storage of heavy equipment such as graders
and plows. It appears to have been demolished by 1958.

Blacksmith Shop (#27) - This 20' by 24' building was used on a limited basis, apparently for emergency repairs.
Enrollees also received training in the shop. The Blacksmith Shop was probably demolished in the 1950s. A
truck tarp rack is believed to have been located along the road to the west of the Blacksmith Shop.

Coal House (#28) - This 20' by 24' building which was used for coal storage was demolished in 1946. It is
possible that salvaged materials from this building were used by the University of Illinois for construction and
remodeling projects at the camp.

Flagpole (#30)

A tall wooden Flagpole, which is painted white, is located at the edge of a line of cedar trees just south of the
Hospital, at the camp's main entrance. It is believed the CCC constructed the Flagpole, although it can only be
positively identified at this location on a site plan by the University of Illinois dated 1947. The oldest known
site plan for the camp shows a flagpole just west of the Pump House. It is possible the current Flagpole was
either moved to or built at its present location because this site provides much greater space for activities and
gatherings than the earlier location. Because it is not known if the Flagpole existed in this location prior to
1947 and therefore historically associated with the camp, it is considered a non-contributing structure. Should
subsequent research confirm this site as the historic location, the Flagpole’s designation would change to
contributing.'®

A small boulder is located just south of the flagpole with a plaque affixed to the face with the following
inscription:

Rabideau Civilian Conservation Corps Camp

Company 708 of the Civilian Conservation Corps made its home in 25 buildings
here at this camp from 1936 to 1941. The Corps, or CCC as it was commonly
called, was an important part of President Franklin D. Roosevelt's New Deal to
bring the nation out of the Great Depression of the 1930s by putting the jobless to
work in the public interest. The CCC made a significant contribution to
conserving America's natural resources while providing work for some three
million young men.

16«Rabideau Camp F-507; site plan dated August 1947, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil
Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1.
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The 200-man Rabideau Company stationed here built roads, planted trees,
developed recreation areas, fought forest fires and constructed administrative
facilities in the Chippewa National Forest. The U.S. Forest Service and the Army
were responsible for the organization, caring and supervision of the men.

The Rabideau CCC Camp was placed on the National Register of Historic Places
in 1976.

Forest Service
U.S. Department of Agriculture
1977

The small boulder and plaque were installed in 1977 to commemorate the listing of the Rabideau Camp on the
National Register of Historic Places on June 16, 1976.

Ball Field (#33)

The Ball Field is located west of the Service Yard at the end of the western segment of the camp’s Road
System. Carls Lake is located just to the north of the Ball Field. The Ball Field is defined by a large clearing
characterized by low grasses and vegetation. There are no other indications of its original use. The Ball Field
is considered a contributing site.

Road System (#34)

The camp’s original unpaved Road System remains intact. It consists of a single, dirt-covered lane, with some
grassy sections in the middle. It enters the camp from the south, forms a loop to the north and extends around
and close by the camp’s primary buildings. It also extends to the east to Benjamin Lake, and to the west to
Carls Lake and the Ball Field. The Road system is considered a contributing structure.

Entrance Stonework (#35)

The original Entrance Stonework is located on the east edge of the entrance road, just to the south of the camp.
Small stones are inset in a sloping hillside, with overall dimensions of about 30' by 15'. The stones are painted
dark brown with the words, "Co. 708", painted white. The Entrance Stonework is considered a contributing
structure.

Site Evolution

The camp has changed very little since 1941, although a number of buildings are no longer extant, several
minor structures have been constructed, and a CCC era building was moved to the site. Three buildings were
lost to fire, and several buildings were removed, generally those that were no longer in use. However, as noted
in the building descriptions, some buildings were dismantled and the materials were used in later construction
and remodeling by the University of Illinois, which also made other minor modifications to the camp.
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There have been minimal alterations to the landscape. The most noticeable change has been the introduction of
larger areas of mowed grass throughout the site. In addition, a number of original landscape features are no
longer extant such as a series of rock-lined paths, foundation plantings, and other landscaping completed by the
CCC.

The following listing includes those buildings that are no longer extant'”:

Mess Hall (#20) - The original CCC Mess Hall was a T-shaped building that included a 20' by 105' dining hall
and a 20' by 60' extension for the kitchen. The walls were decorated with large murals featuring landscapes
painted by a CCC enrollee. It is believed the building was destroyed by a fire in circa 1945, since at that time
the University of Illinois noted the building had been destroyed "recently." The only known photograph of the
building was taken by CCC enrollee James M. Egan'®. There was a large sign next to the Mess Hall that stated,
"Don't be in the Doghouse, Safety First Always, Co. 708, Rabideau Lake has had (X) Days Without a Lost
Time Accident."

Wash House and Latrine (#21) - This 20' by 70' building was destroyed in the same fire in circa 1945 that
destroyed the Mess Hall. However, apparently many of the interior fixtures were salvaged. The building’s
concrete slab may still exist below grade.

Barracks (#12) - This 20' by 75' building was used as a barracks by the CCC and later as a student dormitory by
the University of Illinois. By 1966 the building was no longer being used by the university and was apparently
in some disrepair. This building along with Building #18 may have been sold to the local Fair Board in about
November of that year.

Pump House (#15) - This 20' by 20' building housed the camp's water pump and electrical generators. It
appears to have been demolished in the 1980s.

Army Office and Supply Room (#16) - Also, known as the Headquarters Building, this 20’ by 114' building
provided office space for the Forest Service in the west end of the building (until they moved to Building #1),
office space for the Army in the center of the building, and a supply room for clothing, bedding, and other
supplies in the east end of the building. The University of Illinois used the building for recreational space until
it was destroyed by fire, apparently arson, in 1949.

Forest Service Office (#1) - This building was moved from the abandoned Big Lake CCC Camp (F-28) to the
Rabideau Camp to serve as the Forest Service Office in 1937-38. In 1940 the building was expanded with an
extension to the east to allow for additional space. The counters, filing cabinets, desks, chairs, and even
wastebaskets were all made in the camp's workshop. Ultimately, the building overall dimensions were 20' by
42'. The building was demolished in 1988.

"Rabideau Camp file, Iron Range Research Center, Chisholm, Minnesota.
'8A photocopy of the photograph is located in a file on the Rabideau Camp in the Forest Supervisor's Office in Cass Lake.
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The following non-contributing buildings and structures were added to the site after the period of significance:
Fire Tool Equipment Shed (#13A)

The Fire Tool Equipment Shed is located near the northwest corner of the Army Officer’s Quarters. Itisa
small frame structure, 3’ square and approximately 6 feet tall. It is painted red and is capped with a hip roof
covered with asphalt shingles. Access is gained through a small door on the west fagade. Unlike the other
buildings at the camp, the Fire Tool Equipment Shed is clad with flush wood siding rather than shiplap. The
shed rests on four concrete blocks. It is not known whether the fire Tool Equipment Shed was at the camp
while the CCC occupied the site. The shed appears on a site plan of the camp by the University of Illinois dated
August 1947. 1t is identified simply as “Fire Tools.” The shed may have been moved several feet from its
location on the site plan, which may have occurred when the Army Officer’s Quarters was restored in 1986.
Because it is not known whether the Fire Tool Equipment Shed was historically associated with the camp, it is
considered a non-contributing structure.'’

Wash House (#14)

The Wash House is a one-story, rectangular frame building with overall dimensions of 10' by 15'. The building
is covered with shiplap siding painted green and is capped with a low-pitch gable roof covered with blue
asphalt shingles. The south facing principal facade features an off center entry flanked by single nine-light
hopper window. The north wall includes three nine-light windows organized as a single group. The trim
around all doors and window openings, as well as the corner boards, consists of plain wood planks painted
green. A metal chimney projects from the north slope of the roof.

The construction of this building was formally discussed in the "Special Use Permit" granted to the University
of Illinois for the use of the Rabideau Camp dated May 31, 1946. It was noted that, "Building number 26
(based on a prior numbering system) is to be constructed by the permittee to house a hot water tank, heater, and
washroom." It was to be located between Building #10 and Building #12, although it was later noted that its
position had been changed to a location south of Building #12. The building provided hot water to the adjacent
buildings #9-12 and included laundry facilities. In a "Memorandum to Students" dated June 15, 1949, it was
noted, "This is the laundry building and the use of its two stationary tubs is available at any time." During the
National Surveying Conference held at the camp in August 1952, the boiler exploded and the building was
apparently destroyed or damaged. Although rebuilt or repaired, it may have been at that time that individual
water heaters were installed in the adjacent buildings. Because the Wash House was constructed after the
period of significance, it is considered non-contributing. However, it is possible that the building was
constructed from materials salvaged from the service yard.*

Picnic Shelter (#29)

The Picnic Shelter is a partially enclosed building built with massive logs with overall dimensions of 20' by 36'.

«Rabideau Camp F-507; site plan dated August 1947, University Archives, University of Illinois at Urbana-Champaign, Civil
Engineering Subject File Record Series 11/5/1.

20«Rabideau Camp F-507; “Special Use Permit,” 31 May 1946, attached to correspondence dated 3 January 1950, Rabideau Camp
file, Iron Range Research Center, Chisholm, Minnesota; Milton Schmidt, Professor of Civil Engineering, Emeritus, to the U.S. Forest
Service, 5 August 1985, Rabideau Camp file, Iron Range Research Center, Chisholm, Minneosta; Blackduck American, 9 July 1953.
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The shelter is covered with a low-pitched gable roof covered with wood shingles. Each sidewall features three
bays formed by four vertical logs with supporting brackets. Two short vertical logs are placed next to each of
the four corner posts. The shelter is entered through the center bay while log railings are placed in each
flanking bay. Each end wall includes a central entry with log railings to each side. Four massive log trusses
support the roof. The shelter rests on a concrete slab.

The Picnic Shelter was originally constructed by another CCC camp at a recreation area on Seelye Point on
Lake Cutfoot Sioux. It was disassembled and moved to its present location in 1986. A number of logs were
replaced or repaired at that time and a new concrete slab installed. It is architecturally significant as an example
of the finely-crafted and labor intensive log construction executed by the CCC throughout Minnesota's state
parks and national forests during the Depression Era. The Picnic Shelter is an important example of NPS
Rustic style architecture and is probably individually eligible for the National Register. However, because the
Picnic Shelter is not directly related to the historic themes under consideration, it is considered a non-
contributing building.'

Storage Building (#31)

A small Storage Building is located between Barracks #3 and Barracks #5. The rectangular frame building is
covered by a gable roof. The building was constructed by the University of Illinois as a restroom but now
provides space for lawnmower storage. The Storage Building is considered a non-contributing building.

Vault Toilet (#32)

A Vault Toilet is located south of the camp road near the Picnic Shelter. The small rectangular building is
covered by a gable roof. It was probably built in 1986 in conjunction with the installation of the Picnic Shelter.
The Vault Toilet is considered a non-contributing building.

Fishing Dock (#36)

A Fishing Dock is located east of the camp’s entrance road, south of the Entrance Stonework, on west side of
Benjamin Lake. The dock consists of a T-shaped, wooden structure projecting into the lake that is accessed by
a long ramp. The Fishing Dock was recently constructed and is considered a non-contributing structure.

In spite of the loss of a number of buildings, the Rabideau Camp retains a high level of historic integrity. The
original parcel of land purchased for the construction of the camp remains completely intact and the camp
retains its remote, pristine wilderness setting appropriate for a camp established to undertake a variety of forest
management conservation projects. The camp’s integrity of location, setting, feeling, and association is
exceptional and remarkably evocative of the historic period due to the absence of any significant modern
intrusions or encroachment, or major alterations to the landscape. The camp also retains a high level of integrity
of design, materials, and workmanship. Alterations to the camp’s buildings have also been minimal. In
addition, there are only six very modest, small-scale, non-contributing structures that have been introduced at
the camp. Future research may confirm that the Flagpole and the Fire Tool Equipment Shed occupy their
historic locations. The one building actually built by the CCC but not directly related to the historic themes

2 Blackduck American, 16 July 1986.
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under consideration does not intrude in a major way into the interpretation of the history of the camp.
Moreover, the camp contains an astonishing number of buildings and structures when considering the inherent
fragility of CCC camp buildings and their scarcity nationwide. Unlike nearly all other remnant CCC camps in
the United States, this site provides an unusually complete representation of a CCC camp with all major
functions represented, including administrative, residential, educational, and recreational. The other
outstanding CCC camp, not addressed in this nomination but which should be evaluated for possible National
Historic Landmark designation, is Mount Morrison in Colorado. Mount Morrison differs from Rabideau Camp
notably in that it was founded to house workers engaged in recreational development projects, and has
differences in historic setting and association. Together, both Rabideau and Mount Morrison provide unusually
complete and outstanding representations of the range of New Deal Programs initiated between 1933 and 944.
The Rabideau CCC Camp is one of the best-preserved CCC camps in the United States.
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8. STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Certifying official has considered the significance of this property in relation to other properties:
Nationally: X Statewide:__ Locally:

Applicable National
Register Criteria:

Criteria Considerations
(Exceptions):

NHL Ceriteria:

NHL Theme(s):

Areas of Significance:

Period(s) of Significance:

Significant Dates:
Significant Person(s):
Cultural Affiliation:
Architect/Builder:

Historic Contexts:

A, C

N/A
1,4

V. Developing the American Economy
7. Governmental Policies and Practices
VII. Transforming the Environment
3. Protecting and Preserving the Environment

Politics/Government

Conservation

Architecture

Landscape Architecture

1935-1941

1935

N/A

N/A

U.S. Department of the Army

XXXII. Conservation of Natural Resources
C. The Conservation Movement Matures, 1908-1941
D. The Great Depression and Conservation

VIL Political and Military Affairs, 1865-1939
H. The Great Depression and the New Deal, 1929-1941
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State Significance of Property, and Justify Criteria, Criteria Considerations, and Areas and Periods of
Significance Noted Above.

The Rabideau Civilian Conservation Corps (CCC) Camp is historically significant under National Historic
Landmark Criterion 1 under the areas of significance of Conservation and Politics and Government. The camp
is also associated with the National Historic Landmark themes of Developing the American Economy and
Transforming the Environment, and the historic contexts of Conservation of Natural Resources, and Political
and Military Affairs, 1865-1939. The camp is nationally significant for its association with the CCC, the most
acclaimed and successful of President Franklin Delano Roosevelt’s New Deal programs. From 1933-1942, the
Corps employed three million young men and virtually changed the landscape of the United States through
conservation projects on millions of acres of land and the expansion and development of the nation’s state and
national parks and forests. Long considered one of the great conservation programs in the history of the United
States, recent scholarship also suggests that the CCC revived the conservation movement that had begun during
the turn-of-the-century Progressive Era and popularized the concept of conservation with the American people.
Furthermore, the expansive programs of the CCC influenced and facilitated the emergence of the modern
environmental movement.

The New Deal was a watershed in American history. Its innovative programs brought relief and recovery from
the Great Depression and forever altered the relationship between the federal government and the Americ<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>